2009-0154

Attachment A


Attachment A
Facilities Management Division's responses to questions raised in the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee regarding the 
MRJC piping replacement proposal (2009-0108)
1. Does Procurement and/or the PAO approve the Sazan Group providing design and construction since they acted as the consultant that identified the initial problem?  Is this a conflict of interest?  Please provide any justification for Sazan as the choice to do the work.
All the Sazan Group’s work on this project to date has been by means of work-order (i.e., “on call service”) contracts that have gone through the Contract and Procurement Services Section’s full competitive selection process.  This contract for on-call services was procured and in place prior to the discovery of the piping problem at the MRJC.

Our proposal is for Sazan to provide design and other support services to the County, not construction services.  Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Tom Kuffel sees no inherent conflict of interest in having Sazan provide the design or “owner’s representative” support during construction after having prepared the assessment report.  He believes the third-party review by Wood Harbinger provides reasonable assurance that the report is an unbiased representation of the problems with the MRJC heating system and recommendations for resolving them. 

Under regular procurement practices, using a single architectural and/or engineering consultant (A/E) to provide for both the development of design and construction documents and to provide administrative support during the construction and post-construction periods of a project are normal contracting and project management processes for construction projects.  A single point of A/E contact, as we are proposing with the Sazan Group for the MRJC project, provides an efficient method to handle resolution of the problem described in the Executive’s emergency determination and waiver.
Alan Abrams, Supervisor of Construction and Professional Services for PCSS, assisted FMD in the development of the procurement approach for this emergency MRJC project.  This included the continuing use of the Sazan Group as the engineer for the remaining phases of the project.  It was Mr. Abrams’ opinion that given the emergency determination, the expedited procurement processes being used by FMD are acceptable for this particular project.  Mr. Abrams will assist FMD in the development of both the engineering and construction contracts as requested by FMD.

The 2/4/09 Executive Determination of Emergency and Waiver from Competitive Procurement and Solicitation Requirements for the Maleng Regional Justice Center Central Hot Water Heating System justifies selecting Sazan:
“…Sazan Group, Inc, the consultant, is proposed to be selected for this project to perform because of their central hot water piping system expertise, their familiarity with the MRJC and their unique understanding with the problem gained during the preparation of January 13, 2009 MRJC Heating Piping Assessment Report.”

2. Your design contract is currently at $225K.  What are next steps?  When do you believe $250K will be exceeded and start the 10 day clock?

Steps to date, and next steps:
Step 1: 10/29/08 – FMD staff identified potentially significant problem with hot water heat pipes at MRJC.

Step 2: 10/30/08 – FMD hired Sazan Group to assess the problem and write an assessment report under a then-existing work order contract. First draft completed 11/20/08. $13,730 has been expended.
Step 3:  11/26/08 – FMD hired Wood Harbinger under a direct-pay voucher to provide a third-party peer review of the draft assessment. $1,043 has been expended.
Step 4: 11/26/08 – 1/13/09 – Sazan revised and finalized assessment report.

Step 5: 1/8/09 – FMD hired Sazan as subconsultant under Freeman Fong Architect work order contract (also created under Procurement’s selection process) to perform design development. This was done because Sazan’s original work order contract had reached its billing limit and FMD had no other adequately-sized mechanical engineering consultant contract in place. Contracted cost $34,841.

Step 6: 2/4/09 – Executive Sims signed Executive Determination of Emergency and Waiver from Competitive Procurement and Solicitation Requirements for the Maleng Regional Justice Center Central Hot Water Heating System

Step 7: 2/26/09 -- Executive transmits motion to Council extending the emergency waiver to allow the Executive to enter into design and construction contracts exceeding $250,000.
Step 8:.2/27/09 – Design development complete.
Step 9: 3/2/09 – Anticipated Council approval of Executive’s appropriation request.


Step 10: 3/3/09 – Execute contract with Sazan pursuant to 2/4/09 Executive Determination of Emergency for construction documents, support to FMD during cost negotiations with contractor, construction administration, and preparation of as-built record drawings.  Estimated cost $225,256. (Note: At this point the Executive will not yet have exceeded the $250,000 requiring council approval of the waiver.)
Step 11: 3/3.09 – Begin an abbreviated competitive selection process for a construction contractor under the Executive Determination of Emergency.  This process should not delay the planned construction start date.

Step 12: 3/27/09 – Construction documents complete.

Step 13: 3/30/09 – Select contractor and begin construction cost negotiations.
Step 14: 4/27/09 – Anticipated Council approval of extension to Emergency Waiver 
Step 15: 5/4/09 – Execute construction contract.  Estimated cost: $2,345,904 
Step 16: 5/4/09 – Transmit Notice to Proceed to contractor.

Step 17: 9/18/09 – Construction completed.

Step 18: 10/18/09 – As-built record drawings completed.

3. Why is art funding included in this project?  Wasn’t funding provided from the MRJC original construction?  
No funding for Arts is included in this project estimate.  The Project Cost Estimate summary on page 4 of the 2/17/09 staff report to the BFM committee includes a line item titled “Art and Administrative OH.”  The $103,347 shown is technically correct – it is the sum of the Arts and Administrative OH costs shown in the submitted project cost estimate included as page 22 of the staff report – but the estimated amount for Art is $0, so the entire line item represents only the $103,347 Administrative overhead estimate.  

 
4. What drawings are referred to in #4 of the Wood Harbinger, Inc. letter?  Will their recommendation regarding AHUs and HRUs be reflected in the design?  If so, will it affect the cost estimate?
Wood Harbinger reviewed the first draft of Sazan’s report (draft dated 11/20/08, review letter dated 11/26/08).  Their suggestions were incorporated into Sazan’s 1/13/09 final report. 

To save time and cost, the construction documents Sazan develops for the pipe replacement work will consist of additions and changes made on copies of the “as-built” record drawings developed when the building was completed (rather than starting “from scratch”).  These base as-builts are the drawings Wood Harbinger refers to in #4 of their review letter.

Also in this paragraph, Wood Harbinger agrees with Sazan’s recommendation that the AHUs and HRUs should not be replaced as originally designed, and makes recommendations for some additional changes to the original design.  These recommendations were incorporated into Sazan’s final report. 

5. Wood Harbinger also believed that the $3 million estimate was low.  How was this concern addressed?

Sazan’s 11/20/08 draft report estimated a maximum allowable construction cost (MACC) of $1,440,000.  After incorporating Wood Harbinger’s 11/26/08 suggestions, and after further discussions with FMD, they adjusted their estimated MACC to $2,037,803 (page 19 of their 1/13/09 final report, and reported on page 22 of the 2/17/09 staff report to the BFM committee).
6. Will FMD be able to identify the cause of the problem, i.e. poor design, poor materials, human error?  If so, when?
FMD, under the direction of the PAO, is conducting an investigation into the cause of the problem.
7. Is there any insurance available to apply to the costs?

According to Risk Management, who is looking further into specifics for coverage for this particular situation, insurance would typically pay for property damage resulting from a pipe failure, but not repair or replacement of the system itself.  Depending on the findings of the investigation, a review will be conducted into the possibility of recouping some of the repair/replacement costs relating to errors or inadequacies of others in design, materials, or construction.
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